
 

 

Page 1 of 1  Agenda – April 2, 2024 Council Meeting 

AGENDA 
FOR THE REGULAR MEETING  

OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE  
CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA 

TUESDAY, APRIL 2, 2024 
TIME: 6: 30 p.m. 

THERE WILL BE A WORKSHOP BEGINNING AT 6:00PM 
LOCATION: IN PERSON AT CITY HALL or TELECONFERENCE/VIDEO CONFERENCING LINE 
Phone Number: 1- 650-479-3208 Meeting 
Link: 
https://cityofthornebay.my.webex.com/cityofthornebay.my/j.php?MTID=m99f71eee7f975b71d7ee0f9f7c5e44a1 
Meeting number: 182 323 7632 Password  MghMxgJy424 (64469459 from phones and video systems) 

 

1) CALL TO ORDER: 
2) PLEDGE TO FLAG: 
3) ROLL CALL: 
4) APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
5) MAYOR’S REPORT: 
6) ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS: 

a) City Administrator: 
b) Clerk: Attached in Packet 

7) DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
a) WATER: In Packet 
b) EMS: 

8) PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
9) COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
10) PUBLIC HEARING: 

a) Resolution 24-04-02-01-PZ Public Hearing on City of Thorne Bay for Atlas Towers Conditional 
Use Permit for Telecommunications Tower Construction on Tract EGP, Sandy Beach Road: 

11) CONSENT AGENDA: 
a) Minutes of the March 5, 2024, Regular City Council Meeting, discussion and action item: 

12) NEW BUSINESS: 
a)   Resolution 24-04-02-02: Authorizing Adventure Alaska to Rent Additional Boat Stalls Within the 

Main Throne Bay Harbor. Discussion and Action Item;  
b) Resolution 24-04-02-02: Approving the 6 month renewal for Deana Cotrell in RV Lot 1, 

Discussion and Action Item; 
13) ORDINANCES FOR PUBLIC HEARING: 
14) ORDINANCES FOR INTRODUCTION: 
15) CONTINUATION OF PUBLIC COMMENT: 
16) CONTINUATION OF COUNCIL COMMENT: 
17) ADJOURNMENT: 

POSTED: March 29, 2024 

https://cityofthornebay.my.webex.com/cityofthornebay.my/j.php?MTID=m99f71eee7f975b71d7ee0f9f7c5e44a1


 

 

Page 1 of 3  Minutes – March 5, 2024 Council Meeting 

MINUTES 
FOR THE REGULAR MEETING  

OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE  
CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA 

TUESDAY, March 5, 2024 
TIME: 6: 30 p.m. 

THERE WAS A WORKSHOP OF THE CITY COUNCIL HELD AT 6:00PM 
 

1) CALL TO ORDER: 
Vice Mayor Burger called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

2) PLEDGE TO FLAG: 
The audience and council stood for the pledge to the flag. 

3) OATH OF OFFICERS:  
a) Vice Mayor: Lee Burger 
b) Seat D: Anthony Lovell 

4) ROLL CALL: 
Those present were: 
Blair, LaVoie, Burger, Lovell, Hartwell & Kaer 
Those absent were: 
Nyquest  

5) APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 

 Burger moved to approve the agenda. Blair seconded the motion. No Further Discussion. 
 
MOTION:  Move to approve the Agenda. 
F/S:   Burger/Blair  
YEAS:   Kaer, Blair, LaVoie, Burger, Hartwell, Lovell 
NAYS:   None  
STATUS:  Motion Passed. 

6) MAYOR’S REPORT: 
Vice Mayor Burger reported that the Mayor has had surgery and is recovering.  

7) ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS: 
a) City Administrator: Attached in Minutes 
b) Clerk: Attached in Minutes 

8) DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
a) WATER: Attached in Minutes 
b) EMS: No report given 
c) VPSO: Will West reported 115 calls, not all emergencies. Updated the council on the progress of 

hiring a new VPSO and reported the need for a possible 3rd VPSO.  
9) PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

• none 
10) COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

• none 
11) CONSENT AGENDA: 

a) Minutes of the February 6, 2024, Regular City Council Meeting, discussion and action item: 



 

 

Page 2 of 3  Minutes – March 5, 2024 Council Meeting 

Burger moved to approve the Consent Agenda of February 6, 2024 Regularly City Council 
Meeting, Blair seconded. Discussion none.  

MOTION:  Move to approve the Consent Agenda of February 6, 2024 Regularly City Council Meeting 
F/S:   Burger/  
YEAS:   Kaer, LaVoie, Burger, Hartwell, Lovell, Blair 
NAYS:   None  
ABSENT:  Nyquest 
STATUS:  Motion Passed 

 
12) NEW BUSINESS: 

a)  Resolution 24-03-05-01: Updating Signers on the Tongass Federal Credit Union Account 
discussion and action item; 
Burger moved to approve Resolution 24-03-05-01, Updating Signers on the TFCU Account, 
Blair seconded. No further discussion 

MOTION:  Move to approve the 
F/S:   Burger/  
YEAS:   Kaer, LaVoie, Burger, Hartwell, Lovell, Blair 
NAYS:   None  
ABSENT:  Nyquest 
STATUS:  Motion Passed 

b) Conditional Use Permit Application for Atlas Towers, Discussion and possible action item; 
Burger Moved to approve the Conditional Use Permit Application for discussion, Lovell 
seconded.  

Huestis Clarified that it if the lease is approved, the purpose would require a CUP. A Public 
Hearing will be held at the next meeting. City is the owner and would be processing the permit 
ourselves. Atlas has already submitted a Development plan already. Land is zoned public and we 
will be reaching out to the neighboring properties. This is just an introduction.  

13) ORDINANCES FOR PUBLIC HEARING: 
a)  Non-Code Ordinance 24-03-05-01: Approving the Long-term Lease with Atlas Towers discussion 

and action item; 
Burger moved to approve the Long-term Lease with Atlas Towers, Hartwell seconded,  
Discussion as follows: 
• Huestis commented that Atlas Towers is seeking a 50x50ft piece of land and they are looking 

at the lot by out City Shop. There is road access already, they would be improving the base, 
putting up fencing, and small buildings to house power. They would have 24/7 access to the 
lot. Continued with financial details included in the lease. Explained the 3 year “option” of the 
lease and when the lease would take effect. Explained the option to choose another location 
within the 3 year period.  

• Burger asked that the timeframe is for the construction and Huestis  clarified the terms of 
lease. 

• Lovell asked if the $2000 was a good deal to hold the land for 3 years?  
Huestis responded that they offered nothing until we asked for good faith money, and the 
land is not in high demand. 



 

 

Page 3 of 3  Minutes – March 5, 2024 Council Meeting 

 

MOTION:  Move to approve the Long-term Lease with Atlas Towers 
F/S:   Burger/Hartwell  
YEAS:   Kaer, LaVoie, Burger, Hartwell, Lovell, Blair 
NAYS:   None  
ABSENT:  Nyquest 
STATUS:  Motion Passed 

14) ORDINANCES FOR INTRODUCTION: 
15) CONTINUATION OF PUBLIC COMMENT: 

• None 
16) CONTINUATION OF COUNCIL COMMENT: 

• None 
17) ADJOURNMENT: 
Vice Mayor Burger adjourned the meeting at 7:02 pm.  
 
 
 



PROCEDURE FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

 

Mayor reads the Resolution title into the record 
 
 Administrator provides staff report 

 councilmembers may question staff through the Mayor 
 NO council discussion at this time 

 
 The Mayor or Sponsor of the Resolution may provide an overview of the Resolution 

 10-minute time limit (Sponsor) 
 councilmembers may question the sponsor through the Mayor. 
 NO council discussion at this time 

 
 Mayor opens the public hearing 

 3 minutes per person for members of the public 
 Members of the public may only speak to the public hearing item up for discussion 
 Ask members of the public to give their name, community, or whom they are 

representing. 
 7 minutes per person for representatives of a state agency, city or borough 

official, or a recognized representative of a community council 
 Councilmembers may question members of the public if allowed by the Mayor. 
 NO council discussion at this time 

 
 Mayor invites the sponsor (if applicable) to respond to questions/statements from the 

public 
 10-minute time limit 
 councilmembers may question the sponsor on the Resolution 
 NO council discussion at this time 
 NO discussion between the applicant and the public. 

 Mayor closes the public hearing 
 
 Mayor asks the council for a motion to approve the Resolution 

 discussion moves to the council 
 4 affirmative votes are necessary for approval of the proposed action 



 pg. 1                                                                                Resolution 24-04-02-01-PZ CUP City of Thorne Bay & Atlas Towers 

 
CITY OF THORNE BAY 

RESOLUTION 24-04-02-01-PZ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA, APPROVING 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION NO 24-02-19-01, SUBMITTED BY THE CITY OF 

THORNE BAY FOR ATLAS TOWERS, FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTING A 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS TOWER WITHIN THE PUBLIC ZONED PROPERTY 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council acting as Planning Commission performs the city-wide functions 
of planning, platting and zoning for the city, and to advise the chief executive officer and city 
council of them; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Throne Bay submitted a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) on February 19, 
2024, for the purpose of construction of a Telecommunications Tower per Atlas Towers on 
the property located on Tract EGP, Sandy Beach Road, Thorne Bay, zoned as Public; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Thorne Bay (hereinafter referred to as “applicant”), is property owner 
of Tract EGP Sandy Beach Road, also identified by legal description as Lot 93, Block 6, Tract 
EGP, Thorne Bay; and 
 
WHEREAS, the property identified above is currently zoned as Public, and allows for the 
construction of Telecommunications Towers under a Conditional Use Permit; as per the 
Thorne Bay Municipal Code Sections 17.04.030(b) by reference; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has already approved a Lease Agreement with Atlas Tower for the 
purpose of constructing, operating, and maintaining a Communication Tower on this City 
property and has reviewed and approved the required City Development Permit and draft 
construction plans for the construction of the tower; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Thorne Bay provided written notice to the surrounding property 
owners of the Conditional Use Permit Application and Public Hearing as set forth in Thorne 
Bay Municipal Code Title 17.04.043 (C) (2);   
 
WHEREAS, the City Council acting as Planning Commission, held a public hearing on April 2, 
2024, to consider the approval of Conditional Use Permit No. 24-02-19-01, submitted by City 
of Thorne bay for the purpose of permitting the construction of a Telecommunication Tower 
within Public Zoned property; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council acting as Planning Commission, that 
Conditional Use Permit Application 24-02-19-001, fully satisfies the requirements for 



 pg. 2                                                                                Resolution 24-04-02-01-PZ CUP City of Thorne Bay & Atlas Towers 

approval as set forth in the Thorne Bay Municipal Code Section 17. 04.043-Conditional Use 
Permits, Section B-Criteria for Consideration in Establishing Approval or Denial as follows: 
 

1. The City Council acting as Planning Commission, found the proposal is consistent 
with the Thorne Bay Municipal code and all other applicable city ordinances  

 

2. The proposed use is an expressly permitted conditional use in the Public Zone  
 

3. The use is generally compatible with other existing or proposed uses in the 
surrounding area 

 

4. The proposed use would not adversely affect the health, safety or welfare of persons 
or property in the area neighboring the proposal and the surrounding area  

 

5. The proposed use would not have and unfavorable or detrimental effect on property 
or property values in the area  

 

6. Building height, poor or decrepit construction and incompatibility would not 
significantly affect the surrounding area, or the view shed in the neighborhood,  

 

7. All utilities to the proposal are adequate.  The property is not serviced by Municipal 
water source and does not apply to the proposed use for the Conditional Use Permit 

 

8. Traffic volume, type and patterns are taken into consideration and access is 
adequate to serve any additional traffic flow, the proposed change in use will not 
increase traffic flow  

 

9. Adequate off-street parking is provided   
 

10. The proposed use would not degrade land, water, air or habitat quality  
 

11. All other reasonable objections were taken into consideration by the City Council 
acting as Planning Commission, at the public hearing held April 2, 2024. 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED that the City Council acting as Planning Commission, hereby 
approves Resolution No 24-04-02-01-PZ, approving Conditional Use Permit No. 24-02-19-01, 
submitted by City of Thorne Bay for the use/operation of the property located at Tract EGP, 
Sandy Beach Road, Thorne Bay, for Telecommunication Tower. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED April 2, 2024 

 
________________________________ 

          Lee Burger, Vice Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Caitlyn Sawyer City Clerk/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 

























pg. 1 Resolution 24-04-02-01-Authorizing Additional Boat Stalls 

RESOLUTION 24-04-02-01 
CITY OF THORNE BAY 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA, 
AUTHORIZING ADVENTURE ALASKA TO RENT ELEVEN (11) ADDITIONAL BOAT STALLS 

WITHIN THE MAIN THORNE BAY HARBOR 
 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council is the governing body for the City of Thorne Bay, Alaska; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Thorne Bay Municipal Code 18.20.070-Priority in Space Assignment, states 
that a person may rent more than 2 harbor stalls pending availability and approval from 
the Harbor Master and City Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, Adventure Alaska understands that they may need to move their vessels if 
there is high demand from those who do not already pay for harbor stalls; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Harbormaster has no objections to the City Council granting the request 
for additional harbor stalls as requested by Adventure Alaska. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED,  the City Council for the City of Thorne Bay, Alaska, 
hereby approves Adventure Alaska’s request for renting 11 additional harbor stalls within 
the main Thorne Bay Harbor Facilities. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Thorne Bay, Alaska this 2ND day of 
April  2024, with a vote of _____ Yeah and _____ Nay. 

 
 
 

____________________________ 
 Lee Burger, Vice Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 

______________________________ 
Caitlyn Sawyer, City Clerk/Treasurer 









 pg. 1                                                              Resolution 24-04-02-02 Approving the 6-month RV Lease Renewal for Deana Cotrell 

 
 

CITY OF THORNE BAY  
RESOLUTION 24-04-02-02 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF THORNE BAY, ALASKA, APPROVING 
THE REQUEST FOR A 6-MONTH RENTAL EXTENSION FOR DEANA COTRELL OF LOT 1, IN THE 
THORNE BAY RV  PARK 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council is the governing body of the City of Thorne Bay; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Thorne Bay Municipal Code 12.04.030-Occupancy Duration, Monthly 
Renters, provides that use of an RV space is limited to six consecutive months, unless an 
extension is approved by the City Council upon written request of renter; and 

 
WHEREAS, Deana Cotrell wishes to renew her rental term for an additional six month; and 
 
WHEREAS,  Deana Cotrell has resided in the Thorne Bay RV Park since October 2023 and 
has kept current on her accounts with the city; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Administrator has no objection to approving the request for a six-month 
extension for Lot 1 rented to Deana Cotrell. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council for the City of Thorne Bay hereby 
approves the request for a 6-month rental extension for Lot 1, in the Thorne Bay RV Park. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 2nd day of April 2024, by a duly constituted quorum of the City 
Council with a vote of _ _ _  Yeah, _____ Nays and ____ Absent. 

 
 
 
 

ATTEST Lee Burger, Vice Mayor 
 

 
Caitlyn Sawyer, City Clerk/Treasurer 

 

Sponsor:  Lee Burger  
Introduction: April 2, 2024.      
Vote: Yeas,  Nays,  _Absent 


	Agenda- April 2, 2024
	Minutes- March 5, 2024
	23-05-02 Public Hearing Procedures - C.U.P. Application
	Resolution 24-04-02-01-PZ CUP City of Thorne Bay & Atlas Towers
	CUP Application - Atlas Towers Telecommunications 2024
	Resolution 24-04-02-01 Adv AK Request for boat stalls
	03202024103807 (002)
	Resolution 24-04-02-02 - Deana Cotrell RV Lease Renewal



